
The site of the Fort of Mumrills has for some years been known to occupy portions of two fields on the ridge extending eastward from the village of Laurieston, near Falkirk. The ground is valuable agricultural land, and, consequently, such an extensive continuous excavation as is desirable cannot be undertaken. By the kindness of the farmer, however, the Society has now been able on two occasions to conduct exploration.

Work was commenced on the westmost of the two fields in the winter of 1923, and continued on a limited area until the commencement of August 1924. With the removal of the crop in late November of last year, further excavation was made possible in the eastmost of the two fields, and this proceeded without interruption until the ground was required for agricultural purposes in the end of February.

The result of the excavations has been to reveal three, if not four, systems of ditches, which so far have only been explored in the western or Castletowrie field. The limited area of ground on which we were able to work during the summer of 1924 did not enable us to examine, with any degree of thoroughness, more than the defences of the Antonine Fort. These were found to have consisted of a rampart, probably made of clay, and raised on a cradling of quarried stone, with two ditches in front of it on the south side and, seemingly, three on the west. Where the rampart forms a junction with that of the Antonine vallum, the remains of a small circular turret were discovered. The western gateway was located, and presented certain features of interest. Between the ends of the rampart on each side of the road was a deep pit, some 11 feet in length, 3 feet 6 inches in depth from the surface-level of Roman times, and the same in breadth, filled with boulders embedded in clay, possibly the foundation of some stone structure which had formed part of the gateway.

The work which was carried on during the winter months of 1924-5 in the eastmost of the two fields was productive of valuable results; the foundations of the Principia were laid bare, and gave conclusive evidence of, at least, two periods of reconstruction, the
dimensions of the earliest of the structures showing a headquarters buildling, probably as large as, if not larger, than any other found in Britain. Flanking this foundation on either side were the sites of two long buttressed buildings. That on the west was reduced to the absolute foundations; that on the east, however, in portions, showed the wall still standing to a height of 3 feet.

In the excavation of 1924 a considerable amount of pottery was recovered, the bulk of it of the Antonine period, but a few pieces, probably, referable to the earlier or Agricolan period. Other relics comprise a bow fibula of unusual type, a knee fibula, a small penannular brooch in fragments, two small rings, and an enamelled stud, all of bronze. Objects of iron were more numerous, and include two keys, a socketed spear-head, a knife with a heavy triangular blade, a pointed socket, possibly the butt end of a spear-shaft, an ox-goad, numerous nails, and several clamps or cleats.

Relics were remarkably scarce in the excavation of the Principia and the buttressed buildings. Very little pottery came to light, but there were found a number of pieces of burnt daub showing the impression of wattles, indicating that on the site, in some period of occupation, wattle and daub construction had been employed. A small dress-fastener, beautifully enameled, was almost the only object of importance recovered. The coins found during the two seasons number eight in all, and belong chiefly to the second century, the latest being a "second brass" of Pius of A.D. 151.
A Ballot having been taken, the following were elected Fellows:—

Rev. Professor J. H. Baxter, B.D., St Mary's College, St Andrews.
John W. Burnside, M.A., 3 Oxford Street.
William Cooper, Langholm, South Drive, Harrogate.
Lady Dobbie, 10 Learmonth Terrace.
Donald MacEwen, Victoria Villas, 15 Glenurquhart Road, Inverness.
James George Marwick, T.D., Major R.G.A. (T.A.R.), Graham Place,
Stromness, Orkney.
Alexander Patience, Jesmond, Sandyhills, Shettleston, Glasgow.
George Macaulay Souter, M.A., Donaldson's Hospital.

There was exhibited by Mrs A. E. Nelson, F.S.A.Scot., a mediaeval
iconographical Gold Finger Ring of St George.

In a note forwarding the ring Mrs Nelson stated that this English
fifteenth-century ring was, previous to its acquisition by her, in the
Rosenheim collection. Upon the oval horizontal bezel is engraved St
George standing on the dragon. The saint is clad in complete plate
and wears a pig-snouted bascinet, with pendant camail; he holds in
both hands his spear, which he thrusts into the monster. St George
was very popular in England in the Middle Ages, becoming Patron of
England in 1222, displacing St Edward the Confessor. The Emperor
Sigismund, on his installation as K.G., 24th May 1416, gave to St
George's Chapel, Windsor, a very notable relic of the saint—his hand—
which was preserved therein as late as the reign of Henry VIII.

The following Donations to the Museum were intimated and thanks
voted to the Donors:—

(1) By Sir Andrew N. Agnew, Bart., Vice-President.
Massive stone Hammer, measuring $10\frac{7}{16}$ inches in length, $5\frac{5}{8}$ inches
in breadth, and $3\frac{7}{8}$ inches in thickness, and Axe of felstone, measuring
$7\frac{5}{8}$ inches in length, $2\frac{3}{8}$ inches in breadth, and $1\frac{3}{8}$ inches in thickness,
found on Lochnaw Estate, Wigtownshire.
DONATIONS TO THE MUSEUM AND LIBRARY.

(2) By A. NICOL SIMPSON, F.Z.S., Whinhurst, Fordoun.

Eight Communion Tokens—Arbuthnott, Dunottar, Fordoun, Fordyce, Kinneff, and Glenbervie.

(3) By Mrs YOUNGER, Ravenswood, Melrose.

Set of Bagpipes, the drones of which have deep cup-shaped terminals, the back drone having a horn mount at the end, and the other two ivory or bone mounts. The mouthpiece and blow-pipe are of later date than the drones, as is also the stock. The chanter also is later, and bears the maker’s name, Dn. McDougall, Breadalbane. The bag is contained in a Black Watch tartan cover, and there is a Royal Stuart tartan ribbon of silk attached to the drones.

The donor bought the set from Donald Ross, Jeweller, Golspie, in August 1917. The story attached to them is that they were played by George Mackay at Waterloo, afterwards by his son James Mackay, an old piper in Dunrobin Glen, who played them at the entry of George IV. into Edinburgh, and passed them on to Pipe-Major David Sutherland, whose brother sold them to Donald Ross.

(4) By F. C. B. CADELL, F.S.A.Scot.

Two Cannon Balls of iron, measuring 1\(\frac{1}{2}\) inch in diameter, found in the neighbourhood of the battlefield of Prestonpans. The first was found in the east field at Cockenzie, about the year 1830. The second was picked up at the old Castle of Dolphingston, near Prestonpans, and was given by the gardener there to William Cadell, Esq., of Tranent, grandfather of the donor, in 1838.


Communion Token—Bervie, 1833.

The following Donations of Books to the Library were intimated:—

(1) By His MAJESTY’S GOVERNMENT.


(2) By GEORGE T. FLOM, University of Illinois Press, Urbana, Illinois, U.S.A., the Author.


(3) By the Director of the National Museum, Sofia, Bulgaria.

Guide to the National Museum at Sofia.


The following Communications were read:—